
 

 

 
 
Councillor Conduct Committee  Contact: Penelope Williams  

Secretary 
Monday, 11 December 2017 at 6.30 pm  Direct : 020-8379- 4098 
Room 2, Civic Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, 
EN1 3XA 

 Tel: 020-8379-1000 
 Ext: 4098 
  
 E-mail: Penelope.Williams@enfield.gov.uk 

 Council website: www.enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
Councillors: Claire Stewart (Chair), Glynis Vince (Vice-Chair), Katherine Chibah and 
Elaine Hayward 
 
Independent Persons:  Christine Chamberlain and Sarah Jewell  
 
 

AGENDA – PART 1 
 
1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES   
 
2. SUBSTITUTIONS   
 
 Any member who wishes to appoint a substitute for this meeting must notify 

the Monitoring Officer in writing, before the beginning of the meeting, of the 
intended substitution.  
 
Any notifications received will be reported at the meeting.  
 

3. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   
 
 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary, other pecuniary or 

non-pecuniary interests relating to items on the agenda.   
 

4. APPEAL HEARING  (Pages 1 - 110) 
 
 To consider a report including information on an appeal against a decision 

taken by the Monitoring Officer on a complaint received about a councillor.  
(Report No:124)  
 

5. UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS  (Pages 111 - 112) 
 
 To receive an update from the Monitoring Officer on complaints currently 

being considered. 
 
Rolling record attached.   
 

6. REVIEW OF MEMBER'S EXPENSES  (Pages 113 - 116) 
 
 To receive a report from the Monitoring Officer containing additional 

information on member expenses for 2016/17 as requested by members at 
the meeting held in March 2017.  

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
7. CHANGE TO THE PROCEDURE FOR HANDLING COMPLAINTS 

AGAINST COUNCILLORS AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS  (Pages 117 - 132) 
 
 To receive a verbal update from the Head of Legal Services.   

 
A copy of the report which was considered at Council on 22 November 2017 
is attached for information.   
 

8. WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18  (Pages 133 - 134) 
 
 To note the work programme agreed for 2017/18. 

 
9. MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 5 OCTOBER 2017  (Pages 135 - 138) 
 
 To receive and agree the minutes of the meeting held on 5 October 2017 as 

a correct record.   
 

10. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS   
 
 Members are asked to note the dates agreed for future meetings: 

 

 Tuesday 6 March 2017  
 

11. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 To pass a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 

1972 excluding the press and public from the meeting for any items of 
business moved to part 2 of the agenda on the grounds that they involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in those paragraphs of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local Government (Access 
to Information) (Variation) Order 2006).  
 
There is no part 2 agenda.  
 

 
 
 



MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/2018 REPORT NO. 124 
 

 
MEETING TITLE AND DATE:  
Councillor Conduct 
Committee 11 December 
2017 
 
REPORT OF: 
Former Interim Monitoring 
Officer 
 
Head of Legal Services  
 

Contact officer and telephone number: 

Jayne Middleton-Albooye – 02083796431. Email jayne.middleton-

albooye@enfield.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Subject: Appeal Against the Monitoring 
Officer Decision with regards to a 
Complaint 

  

Agenda – Part: 1
 1  
 

Cabinet Member consulted: N/A 
 

Item: 4 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1. This report sets out a complaint from Mrs. Kate Leach against Councillor Daniel 
Anderson received on 4 January 2017. The complaint alleges several breaches 
of the Councillors’ Code of Conduct (“the Code”), following a ward surgery 
meeting, which Mrs. Leach attended.  
 

2. Councillor Anderson denied he had breached the Code.  
 

3. The former Monitoring Officer, Asmat Hussain,  instructed Jill Bayley, Principal 
Solicitor for the London Borough of Enfield  to investigate the complaint in 
accordance with the Code.  I, in my capacity as Interim Monitoring Officer,  (a 
post, for clarity, which I no longer hold) accepted the findings in the investigation 
report that the matters complained about did not amount to breaches of the 
Code by Councillor Daniel Anderson and therefore the complaint was not 
upheld.  The Complaint Report is attached as Appendix A.   
 

4. Mrs. Kate Leach, the named complainant has exercised her rights to appeal my 
decision, to the Councillor Conduct Committee.  
 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

1. The Committee, having reviewed the former Interim Monitoring Officer’s decision 
and the Independent investigation report, considers the appeal from Kate Leach 
against the decision of the former Interim Monitoring Officer to not uphold the 
complaint against Councillor Daniel Anderson. 

2. If the Committee agrees with the decision to not uphold the complaint, no further 
action is required, apart from endorsement of the decision. 

3. If the Committee disagrees then the Committee will need to consider what 
sanctions, if any to apply as detailed in the procedure for Hearing Complaints 
set out in the Constitution. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 4

mailto:jayne.middleton-albooye@enfield.gov.uk
mailto:jayne.middleton-albooye@enfield.gov.uk


 
 
 
3. BACKGROUND 
 
3.1  I attach to this report Appendix A the investigation report from Jill 

Bayley, Principal Solicitor Enfield Council,  with regards to the 
complaint. It is a report which includes interviews with the 
complainant, an officer of the Council, another resident, a school 
employee and Councillor Daniel Anderson and the appendices 
thereto. 

 
3.2 The Independent Person has been consulted throughout the 

process. 
 
3.3 As the Interim Council Monitoring Officer I agreed with the 

conclusions that are set out on page 10 and 11 that, on the 
balance of probabilities, Councillor Anderson’s actions did not 
amount to a breach of the Code of Conduct.  

 
3.4 Attached at Appendix B is the appeal from Kate Leach and her 

response to the Report. The committee must have regard to the appeal 
and its contents in making its decision. 

 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

None 
 
5. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

As set out in the report 
 

6. COMMENTS OF THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, 
RESOURCES AND CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER 
DEPARTMENTS 

 
6.1 Financial Implications 
 
None  
 
6.2 Legal Implications  
 
These are contained within the body of the report and the investigation 
reports. 

 
6.3 Property Implications  
 
None 
 

7. KEY RISKS  
 

Page 2



None 
 

8. IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES  
 

8.1 Fairness for All  
 
8.2 Growth and Sustainability 

 
8.3 Strong Communities 

 
Where applicable contained within the body of the reports and the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct as set out in the Council’s Constitution  
 

9. EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS  
 
Where applicable contained within the body of the reports and the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct as set out in the Council’s Constitution  

 
 
10. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  

 
Where applicable contained within the body of the reports and the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct as set out in the Council’s Constitution  
 

11. HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 
 

Where applicable contained within the body of the reports and the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct as set out in the Council’s Constitution  
 

12. HR IMPLICATIONS   
 

Where applicable contained within the body of the reports and the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct as set out in the Council’s Constitution  
 

13. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS  
 

Where applicable contained within the body of the reports and the 
Councillors’ Code of Conduct as set out in the Council’s Constitution  
 
 
 

14. Background papers 
 
Appendix A  
Investigation report of Jill Bayley, Principal Solicitor, London Borough 
of Enfield 
 
Appendix B  
Kate Leach Appeal Form and Response to the Report 
 
 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5



Page 6



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



 

Revised 1 December 2017  
 
 
 

Councillor Complaints – Monitoring Officer Rolling Record (2017/18) 
 

Ref  Receipt of 
Complaint  

Councillor/s Complainant Nature of 
Complaint  

Investigation Hearing  Outcome  Status  
(Open/ 
Closed) 

Follow-
up 
/Learning  

Independent 
Person 

001 Dec 2016 Conservative 
Party 
Members  

Member Possible 
breach of 
code – 
Walkout at 
full Council 

External 
Investigation 
Legal Partner 
(BJ)  

  Open –
Investigation 
complete   
Ongoing 

 CC 

002 Dec 2016  Single 
Member  
Cllr Laban 

Member  Possible 
breach of 
code – 
behaviour to 
Mayor at full  
Council  

External 
Investigation  
Legal  Partner 
(BJ)  

  Open – 
Ongoing 
investigation  

 CC 

005 Feb 2017  2 Members 
Cllrs Erbil 
and Dogan  

Citizen  Possible 
breach of the 
code – false 
and 
malicious 
allegations 
against an 
individual  

Internal 
Investigation  
Monitoring 
Officer 

  Open –
Investigation  

 CC 

006 Jan 2017  1 Member 
Cllr 
Anderson  

2 Citizens Possible 
breach of the 
code – 
conduct at 
public 
meeting 

Internal 
Investigation 
(JB) 
 
 
 
 
 

  Completed 
Appeal 
received  

 SJ 

007  July 2017 1 Member 
Cllr Celebi  

Member  Possible 
breach of 
code use of 
title  

Monitoring 
Officer  

  Closed   CC 

008 November 
2017 

3 Jubilee 
Ward 
Councillors  

2 Residents  Possible 
breach of 
code 

Internal 
Investigation 
Head of Legal  

  Open   SJ  

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 5



 

Revised 1 December 2017  
 
 
 

 

P
age 112



 MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/2018 – REPORT NO.  125 
 

 

COUNCILLOR CONDUCT COMMITTEE 

 7 December 2017 

REPORT OF:  

Jayne Middleton-Albooye – Head of 
Legal  

Contact Officers: 

Kathy Constantinou, Superintendent 
Registrar & Head of Mayoral and 
Member Support Services 

020 8379 8528 
Kathy.constantinou@enfield.gov.uk 

Agenda – Part 1 Item: 6 

Subject: 

Members’ Expenses 

Wards: 

All 

Key Decision No: 

Not applicable 

Cabinet Member consulted: 

Not applicable 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

1.1. Consideration of members’ expenses is included on the Committee’s work 
programme for 2017/2018.   

1.2. This report outlines expenses paid to Members in pursuance of their duties 
and provides some comparator information. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 

2.1. That the Committee notes the information provided and considers whether any 
resultant actions are required. 

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1. Members will be aware that the members’ allowances scheme, which forms 
part 6 of the constitution, governs the amounts each councillor is entitled to 
receive in performance of their duties. 

3.2. The basic allowance in Enfield is £10,570 per annum.   

3.2.1. In addition, “members are entitled to receive travelling and 
subsistence allowances where such expenditure is necessarily 
incurred outside of the Borough of Enfield for the purpose of attending, 
as the Council's nominated representative, a meeting of any of the 
bodies or organisations to which the Council nominates 

Page 113 Agenda Item 6



representatives and attending a conference or other meeting … as the 
Council's representative.” 

3.3. The council is required to publish details of the total sums paid to members in 
each municipal year, including expenses.  These details are published on the 
council’s website but the full schedules for the 2015/2016 and 2016/2017 
municipal years are appended to this report. 

3.4. In summary, expenses totalling £210.75 were claimed in 2016/2017, down 
from £615 in 2015/2016. 

3.4.1. Comparator details for 2016/2017 are set out below for information: 

Authority Basic Allowance (£) Expenses Claimed (£) 

Enfield 10,570 211 

Croydon 11,239 2,026 

Barnet 10,597 Not published 

Haringey 10,703 2,114 

Hackney 10,262 1,682 

Islington 9,911 220  

Merton 8,694 217 

Newham 10,937 2,837 

Bexley 9,418 Not published 

Richmond 9,400 None Claimed 

Lewisham 9,812 978 

Southwark 10,832 Not published 

3.5. In the 2017/2018 municipal year to date, 3 members have claimed expenses 
totalling £198.12. These consist of £177.90 for train fares, £13.60 for parking 
tickets and £6.60 for refreshments.  

3.6. As far as other services that might be considered as expenses is concerned, 
the following costs have been incurred from 1st April 2016 to 31st March 2017: 

 Ipads x 2 replaced £    770 
(Ipads at £335 x 53) 

 Laptops x 1 replaced 501 

 Mobile telephones x 1 replaced 137 
 3G & 4G £14,271 

Total Expenses    £15,679 

This equates to an average of £249 per Member.   

Page 114



3.7. There are in addition costs incurred on an annual basis, as follows: 

 Ipad Apps/Licences 53 Members £3,118 

 Laptop licences, etc. 10 Members £1,280 
Total annual costs  £20,077 

This equates to an average of £319 per Member. 

3.8. There is also a £3,700 per annum budget set aside for Member training and 
development and attendance at seminars and conferences, etc.  This equates 
to a notional allocation per Member of £59. 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

4.1. Not applicable. 

5. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

5.1. To note the information provided and to consider whether any resultant 
actions are required. 

6. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND 
CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS 

6.1. Financial implications 

6.1.1. The total expenditure on members’ allowances in the 2016/2017 
financial year was £988,516.75 with expenses in that year totalling 
£211. 

6.2. Legal implications 

6.2.1. None identified 

6.3. Property implications 

6.3.1. None identified. 

7. KEY RISKS 

7.1. None identified 

8. IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES 

8.1. The report’s contents meet the Council priorities of Fairness for All, Growth 
and Sustainability and Strong Communities.  

9. EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS 

9.1. No equalities impact assessment has been undertaken and is not necessary. 

10. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

Page 115



10.1. None identified. 

11. HEALTH AND SAFETY IMPLICATIONS 

11.1. None identified. 

12. HUMAN RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS 

12.1. None identified. 

13. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS 

13.1. None identified 

Background papers 

None 

Page 116



 

 

 

MUNICIPAL YEAR 2017/2018 - REPORT NO. 100 

 

MEETING TITLE AND DATE   
Council 
22 November 2017  

Agenda - Part: 1  Item:  10 

Subject:  Review of Councillor Code of 
Conduct Procedures for Handling and 
Hearing Complaints against Elected and 
Co-Opted Members 
 
Wards: Not Ward Specific 

REPORT OF:  Key Decision No:  N/A  

Jayne Middleton-Albooye – Head of 
Legal Services  
 

Cabinet Member consulted: 
 
Not Applicable  

Contact officer and telephone number:  
Jayne Middleton-Albooye  
E mail: Jayne.Middleton-Albooye@enfield.gov.uk 

Tel: 0208 379 6438 
 

 

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

The report is to seek Council’s approval for changes to the Councillor 
Code of Conduct procedures for handling and hearing Complaints 
against Councillors and Co-opted members.   
 
On 5 October 2017 the Councillor Conduct Committee agreed to 
recommend changes to the procedure for handling complaints against 
elected and co-opted members which are put forward in this report.   
 
The changes concern the ability of the Monitoring Officer to pursue 
complaints, even when they have been withdrawn by the complainant 
and to include the procedure for hearing complaints in the Council 
Constitution.   

 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Council approve:  
 
2.1      A change to the Councillor Code of Conduct procedures for handling 

complaints against elected and co-opted members to enable the Monitoring 
Officer to pursue complaints if she/he thinks that these warrant further 
investigation even if they have been withdrawn.  The full text of the change is 
included in para 3.5 of the report.   

 

Page 117 Agenda Item 7

mailto:Jayne.Middleton-Albooye@enfield.gov.uk


 

 

 

2.2   To include the procedure for hearing complaints (as attached as appendix 
2 to this report) as an appendix to the Councillor Code of Conduct in the 
Council Constitution.   

 

 
3. BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 The Procedure for Handling Complaints against Councillors and Co-opted 

Members, attached as Appendix 1, was adopted by Council on 4 July 2012 and 
previously amended by the Councillor Conduct Committee on 22 October 2013.  
Given that the last review was over 3 years ago, at its meeting on 10 October 
2016, the Committee asked the Monitoring Officer to carry out a review of the 
procedure and report back to the Councillor Conduct Committee with 
recommendations for any changes.   

3.2 The recommendations were considered and agreed for recommendation to 
Council by the Committee on 6 October 2017 and are now being put forward to 
Council for agreement.  The changes are also supported by the Council’s two 
Independent Persons.   

3.3 The procedure sets out the current process for dealing with complaints. 

3.4 It currently has no provision to allow the Committee or the Council Monitoring 
Officer in consultation with the Independent Person(s) the flexibility to consider 
complaints which have either been withdrawn or have been resolved in another 
way, This provision could be required where a serious breach has occurred or 
where it is in the public interest for it to be considered by the committee. 

3.5 As part of the review the Monitoring Officer looked at inserting an additional 
paragraph into the Procedure for Handling Complaints against Councillors and 
Co-opted Members under Paragraph 5, Consideration of Complaints by 
Monitoring Officer, which would give the Monitoring Officer in consultation with an 
Independent Person(s) the authority to pursue further a potential breach of the 
code even if it had been withdrawn:- 

 “Where a registered complaint is subsequently withdrawn or resolved 
outside the Procedure, the Monitoring Officer in consultation with 
Independent Persons(s) has the discretion to decide if the matter has been 
adequately and/or proportionately resolved or whether, given the 
substance of the original complaint, it should be escalated to the 
Committee for further consideration/resolution”. 

 
3.6 The procedure for hearing complaints was first agreed by Council in ??? 

(appendix 2).  It was not included in the Council Constitution with the Code 
of Conduct and the Procedure for Handling Complaints.  The Councillor 
Conduct Committee agreed that this was an omission and that it made 

Page 118



 

 

 

sense for it to be included so that all the necessary complaints information 
can be found in one place.   
 

4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 

To leave the complaints process unchanged but this would mean that there 
would continue to be no provision to enable the Monitoring Officer to continue 
with a complaint where he/she feels it is necessary.   

 
5. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 As set out in the report  
 
6. COMMENTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE, RESOURCES AND 

CUSTOMER SERVICES AND OTHER DEPARTMENTS 
 

6.1 Financial Implications 
 

There are no financial implications.  Any changes will be covered within existing 
resources.   

 
6.2 Legal Implications  
 
 The Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”) sets out the requirements for local authority to 

secure a code of conduct and to ensure arrangements are in place to investigate 
allegations of misconduct of Councillors. The report complies with the Act. 

 
6.3 Property Implications  
 

There are no property implications 
 

7. KEY RISKS  
 

None identified 
 

8. IMPACT ON COUNCIL PRIORITIES  
 

8.1 Fairness for All , Growth and Sustainability and Strong Communities   
 

The proposals in the report meet the council priorities. 
 

9. EQUALITIES IMPACT IMPLICATIONS  
 

An equality impact assessment was not necessary for this decision. 
 

 

Page 119



 

 

 

10. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  
 
There are no performance management implications. 
 

11. PUBLIC HEALTH IMPLICATIONS  
 

There are no public health implications. 
 

Background Papers – None   
 
Appendix 1:  Procedure for Handling Complaints against Councillors and Co-opted 
Members. 
Appendix 2:  Procedure for Hearing Complaints against Councillors and Co-opted 
Members.   
 
 

Page 120



 

1 
 

 

London Borough of Enfield 
 

Procedure for Handling Complaints against 
Councillors and Co-opted Members 

 

 
1. Introduction 

 
1.1 The Council has established a Councillor Conduct Committee to 

implement the relevant requirements of Section 28 of the Localism Act 
2011. These include arrangements for dealing with allegations that a 
councillor or co-opted member has failed to comply with the Authority’s 
Code of Conduct. 

 
  1.2 The Councillor Conduct Committee comprises 4 members of the Council 

and deals with policy, complaints against councillors and issues 
concerning the members’ Code of Conduct. The Localism Act also set up 
a role of Independent Person who will be consulted in respect of 
complaints received and before findings and sanctions are agreed. The 
Independent Person will not be a councillor and will be drawn from the 
local community. The Council has agreed to appoint two Independent 
Persons who will be recruited through public advertisement and a 
competitive interview process. Further information on the role of the 
Committee and the Independent Persons can be found at (insert hyper 
link) 

 
  1.3 Further reference to ‘councillor’ or ‘member’ in this document also refers 

to co-opted members of the Authority. 
   

2. Key principles  
 
 The procedure for dealing with complaints should: 
 

2.1 Be relevant to the Council’s Code of Conduct 

2.2 Have the confidence of the public, Council members and council staff. 

2.3 Be as simple and economical as possible 

2.4 Be speedy and fair to all parties 

2.5 Be decisive  

2.6 Provide oversight and support to the Monitoring Officer 

2.7 Be proportionate and comply with the principles of natural justice 

Page 121



 

2 
 

3. Criteria for eligibility of complaints 

3.1 Complaints must be received by the Council’s Monitoring Officer in 
writing within three months of the alleged matter, stating why it is felt the 
councillor concerned has breached the Code of Conduct. It will be 
considered solely on the evidence presented. The Council encourages 
complainants to provide their name and contact details. If the 
complainant asks for their identity to be protected, the Council will not 
disclose such details without their consent. The Council will not accept 
anonymous complaints. The Monitoring Officer will consult the Councillor 
Conduct Committee or relevant Independent Person as appropriate 
throughout the process – subject to neither being at risk of being 
compromised in the event of them being involved at some future point. 

3.2 Complaints will not be accepted where: 

(a) They are considered to be malicious, vexatious or frivolous 

(b) The subject matter has already been considered by the Council - 
except where new evidence has become available which could not 
previously have been produced  

(c) It would be more appropriate for the complaint to be dealt with by a 
court or under another complaints or arbitration procedure  

(d) One of the parties had registered their intention to take legal action 
on all or some of the matters complained about  

(e) Legal action is under way 

(f) Some or all of the matters complained about have been resolved 
through litigation.  

(g) The complaint is being/has been dealt with by another independent 
complaints process. 

(h) The complainant seeks to overturn decisions made by the Council. 

 

3.3 If a complaint is rejected on the basis of 3.2 above, there is no right of 
appeal.  

  
4. Process 

 
4.1 All complaints must be made using the Councillor Conduct Complaint 

Form attached as Appendix 1.   

4.2 The Council will use its best endeavours to determine a complaint within 
3 months of receipt. It will acknowledge the complaint within 5 working 
days, giving the complainant a contact name and details.  The 
complainant will be kept informed of progress throughout. The process 
may include: 

(a) Requests for further information/evidence 

(b) Informal resolution to the satisfaction of all parties 

Page 122



 

3 
 

(c) Mediation 

(d) Investigation and/or 

(e) Referral to the Councillor Conduct Committee where the 
Monitoring Officer feels it would not be appropriate for him/her to 
take a decision 

4.3 The Monitoring Officer, based primarily on the criteria set out in 
paragraph 3.2 above, will consider the complaint received and, in 
consultation with an Independent  Person, will determine whether it 
warrants further action. 

4.4 If it is decided that the complaint does not warrant further action as it falls 
within the criteria in 3.2, the Monitoring Officer will advise the 
complainant accordingly with reasons.  

 4.5 If the complaint is referred for further action, the Monitoring Officer will 
determine, in consultation with the Independent Person, the most 
appropriate way of dealing with the complaint.  The Monitoring Officer 
can either decide to determine the matter her/himself or refer it to the 
Councillor Conduct Committee.   

5. Consideration of Complaints by Monitoring Officer 

 5.1 The Monitoring Officer may decide to undertake any investigation and 
other actions him/herself or appoint another person to act as 
investigating officer on his/her behalf. Whichever option is chosen, the 
outcome will be the responsibility (and in the name) of the Monitoring 
Officer. 

 5.2 Following an investigation which may involve requests for further 
information and advice, the Monitoring Officer or his/her representative 
will seek to resolve the matter to the satisfaction of all parties or carry out 
mediation.   

  (a) If the complaint is resolved, there will be no further action. 

  (b) If this is not possible the Monitoring Officer will either determine 
the matter her/himself or refer it to the Councillor Conduct Committee at 
this stage.   

  5.3 The Monitoring Officer will report quarterly to the Councillor Conduct 
Committee on: 

(a) The number and nature of complaints received 

(b) Those rejected with reasons 

(c) Those resolved through informal resolution and other methods (eg 
mediation) 

(d) The number investigated, 

(e) Outcome/progress of investigations and action taken. 

 

6. Appeals against Monitoring Officer decisions 

Page 123



 

4 
 

6.1 In cases where the Monitoring Officer has either found no breach of the 
code or has determined the matter him/herself the complainant will have 
a right of appeal against this decision.  
 
A councillor will also have a similar right of appeal against a Monitoring 
Officer decision.  

6.2 Such appeals must be submitted on the template attached as Appendix 2 
within 10 working days of the receipt of the decision.   

6.4 Appeals under 6.1 above will be considered by the Councillor Conduct 
Committee, with advice from an Independent Person not previously 
involved, if available. 

6.5 When considering the appeal the Councillor Conduct Committee will 
follow the procedure for appeal hearings (to be reviewed).   

6.6 The attendance of the appellants will not be required unless the 
committee decides otherwise 

6.7 If the Councillor Conduct Committee do uphold the appeal, and consider 
that there has been a breach of the code, they will have the option of 
considering further action, imposing sanctions or adjourning to seek 
further information.   

6.8 There is no further right of appeal to the Council against the decision of 
the Councillor Conduct Committee.  The decision made will be final and 
binding.   

 
6.9 If the complainant feels that the Council has failed to deal with a 

complaint properly, and that this failure has caused injustice, a complaint 
can be taken to the Local Government Ombudsman.   

 

 7. Consideration of complaints by Councillor Conduct Committee 

 
7.1 If appropriate, the Monitoring Officer (in consultation with the 

Independent  Person) may refer the outcome of an investigation to the 
Councillor Conduct Committee. 

 
7.2 The Committee will consider the Monitoring Officer/Investigating Officer’s 

report which should include evidence and representations from both 
parties associated with the complaint. The attendance of the 
complainant(s) and the member(s) against whom the allegations were 
made will not be required, unless the Committee decides otherwise. 

 
7.3  The Committee will follow the procedure for Councillor Conduct 

Committee hearings.  (to be reviewed)  
 

7.4 The Committee after considering the investigating officer’s report will 
decide either that: 

 

Page 124



 

5 
 

(a) The member concerned has breached the Code of Conduct; or 

(b) There has been no breach 

 
7.5 In the event of a finding of a breach of the Code, the Committee will have 

the option of recommending a sanction against the member concerned. 
This can include: 

 
(a) Reporting the findings to full Council 

(b) Recommending to the relevant Group Leader that the councillor be 
removed from relevant meetings of the Authority of which they are 
a member 

(c) Recommending to the Leader of the Council that the member be 
removed from the Cabinet or from particular portfolio 
responsibilities 

(d) Withdrawing facilities provided to the member by the Council – 
such as computer access and/or e mail or internet access 

(e) Excluding the member from the Council’s offices or other premises 
for a defined period of time – with the exception of meeting rooms 
as necessary for the purpose of attending meetings of the Authority 
of which they are a member 

(f) Publishing the findings in the local media. 

 
7.6 The decision will be communicated to all parties with reasons 

 
7.7 Where there is a finding of no breach, the Committee will communicate 

the decision to all parties together with reasons. 

8. Appeals against decisions of the Councillor Conduct Committee (in relation 
to 7 above).   

The decision of the Councillor Conduct Committee will be final and binding with 
no further right of appeal to the Council.   If the complainant feels that the 
Council has failed to deal with the complaint properly and that this failure has 
caused injustice, they can make a complaint to the Local Government 
Ombudsman.   

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank



 

1 

 

London Borough of Enfield  
 
Procedure for Hearing Complaints against Councillors and  
Co-opted Members and for Appeals against Monitoring Officer 
Decisions on Complaints  
 
1. General Principles  

 

1.1 The Councillor Conduct Committee will decide, on a balance of probabilities, 
whether the allegation(s) is or are upheld.  They will be able to call on the 
advice of relevant council officers and the Independent Person, who had not 
previously been consulted on the complaint.  (where we have two 
independent persons)  
 

1.2 Papers will be sent out in advance of the hearing, including the Monitoring 
Officer/Investigating Officer report with all the evidence gathered, and 
representations from both the complainant and the member complained 
against.  They will both have the opportunity to comment, in advance, on the 
report and evidence put forward.  Any comments will be provided for the 
committee in advance of the meeting.   

 
1.3 The Committee will make a decision by considering the Monitoring 

Officer/Investigating officer’s report and any representations by the 
Monitoring/Investigating officer or their representative and the written 
representations made by the complainant or member complained against, and 
any information provided at a hearing.  Both parties will have the opportunity 
to make written representations, irrespective of whether they are invited to 
attend the hearing.   

 
1.4 There will be no requirement for either the complainant or the member(s) 

complained against, to attend committee hearings unless the committee 
decides otherwise.   All parties will be advised of this beforehand.   
 

1.5 If the Committee does decide to invite them to attend, the complainant and the 
member complained against may be accompanied during the investigation 
hearing. 

 

1.6 The public and press will be excluded for those parts of the hearing where 
confidential or exempt information under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended, is disclosed.  At the start of the hearing, 
the Committee will make a decision as to whether or not all or part of the 
hearing should be held in public.   

 

2. Procedure at Investigation Hearings 
 
The Legal Representative will be the advisor to the Committee and may seek 
further information or ask questions at any point in these proceedings.  During 

Page 127



 

2 

 

the hearing all questions and other proceedings shall be addressed through 
the chair.   

 
2.1 Presentation of the Monitoring Officer Report  
 

a. The Monitoring/Investigating Officer will present his/her report and any 
relevant information to the committee members.  

 
b. The Independent Person, who has been consulted on the Monitoring 

Officer decision, may include their comments.  
 
c. The committee members will have an opportunity to ask questions of the 

Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person. 
 

2.2 If the Complainant and Member Complained Against are Invited to 
Attend the Hearing  

 
a. The Committee will consider the merits of each case, individually, when 

deciding if they feel it is necessary to invite the complainant and member 
complained about to attend the hearing.   

 
b. If the Committee require the attendance of the member complained 

against and complainant, they will specify the reasons for their 
attendance in advance.  

 
c. In these cases the chair will decide how to manage any contributions to 

be made at the meeting, including any representations and make this 
clear to all present at the beginning of the meeting.     

 
2.3 Consideration of the Outcome 

 
a. The Monitoring/Investigating Officer, Independent Person and any other 

relevant parties will all withdraw. The Legal Representative and 
Committee Administrator will remain.   

 
b. The Committee will consider all the information and make a decision as 

to whether or not there has been a breach of the code of conduct.  
 
c. If it is decided that there had been a breach of the code, the Committee 

will then consider and agree what sanctions should be imposed.  A list of 
possible sanctions is set out in Appendix A.   

 
2.4 Outcome of the Hearing   
 

A formal written notice of the decision will be communicated to all parties 
including the member complained against, the Monitoring Officer/Investigating 
Officer, the members of the committee and the complainant with reasons.  
This must be within five working days of the conclusion of the hearing.   
 

Page 128



 

3 

 

2.5 General Recommendations from the Hearing  
 
After the hearing the Committee may consider whether there are any general 
recommendations in relation to ethical governance matters which they may 
wish to make arising from consideration of the allegation.   

 
3. Procedure at an Appeal Hearing Against a Decision by the 

Monitoring Officer 
 

The attendance of the complainant and member complained against will not 
be required unless the Committee decides otherwise.   
 

3.1 Presentation of the Monitoring Officer Report  
 

a. The Monitoring/Investigating Officer will present his report and any other 
information to the committee members along with any comments 
submitted in writing by the complainant or member(s) complained against. 

 
b. The Independent Person, who had been consulted on the Monitoring 

Officer decision, may include their comments.  
 
c. The committee members will have an opportunity to ask questions of both 

the Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person.  
 

3.2 Consideration of the Evidence  
 
a. The Monitoring/Investigating Officer and Independent Person will then 

withdraw.  The Legal Representative and Committee Administrator will 
remain in the appeal hearing.   

 

b. The Committee will consider all the information and make a decision as to 
whether or not to uphold the Monitoring/Investigating Officer decision.   

 
3.3 Agree Outcome  
 

If the outcome of the appeal results in Committee confirming that a breach of 
the code has occurred then it will need to consider what sanctions it wishes to 
impose as a result.  A list of sanctions is attached as Appendix A.   
 

3.4 Outcome of Hearing   
 

A formal written notice of the decision will be communicated to all parties 
including the member complained against, the Monitoring Officer/Investigating 
Officer, the members of the committee and the complainant with reasons.  
This must be within five working days of the conclusion of the appeal hearing.   
 
 
 
 

Page 129



 

4 

 

3.5      General Recommendations from the Hearing  
 
After the appeal hearing the Committee may consider whether there are any 
general recommendations in relation to ethical governance matters which they 
may wish to make arising from consideration of the allegation.   

 

Page 130



 

5 

 

Appendix A  
 
In the event of a finding of a breach of the Code, the Committee will have the option 
of recommending a sanction against the member concerned. This can include: 
  

 Reporting the findings to full Council. 
 

 Recommending to the relevant Group Leader that the councillor be removed 
from relevant meetings of the Authority of which they are a member. 

 

 Recommending to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed 
from the Cabinet or from particular portfolio responsibilities. 

 

 Withdrawing facilities provided to the member by the Council – such as 
computer access and/or e mail or internet access. 

 

 Excluding the member from the Council’s offices or other premises for a 
defined period of time – with the exception of meeting rooms as necessary for 
the purpose of attending meetings of the Authority of which they are a 
member. 

 

 Publishing the findings in the local media. 
 
 

Page 131



This page is intentionally left blank



Councillor Conduct Committee – 11 December 2017  
  

Revised 1 December 2017 
 

Councillor Conduct Committee: Work Programme 2017/18 
 

 

ITEM Lead/ Support 
Officer 

 
6 July  
2017 

 
5 October  

2017 

 
11 December 

2017 

 
6 March 

2018 

Annual Report Asmat 
Hussain/Penelope 

Williams  

To agree the 
Annual Report 

2016/17 

 
 

  

Work Programme 2017/18  Jayne Middleton-
Albooye/ 

Penelope Williams  

To Agree the 
Outline Work 

Programme for 
2016/17 

Work 
Programme 
Monitoring 

Work 
Programme 
Monitoring  

Work Programme  
Monitoring 

Review of Code of Conduct 
and Complaints Processes  

Jayne Middleton-
Albooye 

 Review 
 

  

Update on Complaints 
Received 

Jayne Middleton-
Albooye 

Update Update  Update  Update  

Independent Persons 
Training 

Independent 
Persons  

Report on training 
Received 

   

Complaints – Review of 
complaints received in 

2016/17  

Jayne Middleton-
Albooye 

Review     

Member Training  Claire Johnson     

Regular update on Standards 
Matters – bringing members 
attention to recent standards 
news items for information.  

Jayne Middleton-
Albooye 

If required  If required  If required  If required  

Review of Protocol for 
Member Officer Relations 

Jayne Middleton-
Albooye  

    

Review of Member’s 
Expenses 

Kathy Constantinou  Report Report   

Dispensations  Penelope Williams Annual Update     

 
Gifts and Hospitality  

Kathy Constantinou   Report   

 
 

     

 
 

     

P
age 133

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

COUNCILLOR CONDUCT COMMITTEE - 5.10.2017 

 

- 159 - 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COUNCILLOR CONDUCT COMMITTEE 
HELD ON THURSDAY, 5 OCTOBER 2017 

 
COUNCILLORS  
 
PRESENT Claire Stewart, Glynis Vince and Elaine Hayward 

 
Christine Chamberlain and Sarah Jewell (Independent 
Persons)  

 
ABSENT Katherine Chibah 

 
OFFICERS: Jayne Middleton-Albooye (Acting Assistant Director Legal and 

Governance) Penelope Williams (Secretary) 
  
 
Also Attending: No members of the public.   
 
226   
WELCOME AND APOLOGIES  
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting.  Apologies for absence were 
received from Councillor Chibah.   
 
227   
SUBSTITUTIONS  
 
There were no substitutions.   
 
228   
DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of interest.   
 
229   
UPDATE ON COMPLAINTS  
 
The Committee received the rolling record of complaints currently being 
considered by the Monitoring Officer.   
 
Jayne Middleton-Albooye (Acting Monitoring Officer) briefed members on the 
current complaints as follows:   
 

 She had five complaints which were due to be concluded soon. 
 

 The complaint report for complaint reference number 001 had been 
concluded and sent to the interested parties for comment. 

 

 A procedural breech had occurred in the investigation of complaint 
reference number 002 and one more interview had to take place before 

Page 135 Agenda Item 9



 

COUNCILLOR CONDUCT COMMITTEE - 5.10.2017 

 

- 160 - 

the report could be finalised.   This was being arranged and the report 
would be completed shortly.     

 

 This complaint had been being investigated internally by Jayne 
Middleton-Albooye herself. The key people involved had been 
interviewed and further interviews arising from the initial investigation 
were being arranged.  It was hoped that it would be concluded next 
month.   

 

 In reference to complaint 005, a comprehensive investigation had been 
carried out and the conclusions were due to be sent to those involved, 
within the next few days.   

 

 The complaint reference number 007 had been resolved.  Councillor 
Celebi should have included the word shadow on her signature.  She 
had apologised for her mistake and rectified it.  Her apology had been 
accepted.   

 
NOTED that  
 
1. Councillor Vince requested information on the amount of the total cost 

of the investigation into complaint 001.  
 

2. Jayne Middleton-Albooye agreed to provide the information for the next 
meeting.     

 
AGREED to note the information on current complaints.        
 
230   
REVIEW OF CODE OF CONDUCT AND COMPLAINTS PROCESSES  
 
The Committee received copies of the current Councillor Code of Conduct 
and the procedures for handling and hearing complaints against members and 
co-opted members.   
 
NOTED 
 
1.  Asmat Hussain, the previous Monitoring Officer, had agreed with 

Christine Chamberlain, Independent Person that there were occasions 
where a complaint may still warrant investigation even where it had 
been resolved informally or was withdrawn by the complainant.  They 
had suggested that the procedure should be changed to enable this. 
 

2. Following discussion, the committee recommended that the following 
paragraph be added to the procedure after paragraph 5.1:  
 
“Where a registered complaint is subsequently withdrawn or resolved 
outside the procedure, the Monitoring Officer in consultation with 
Independent Persons(s) has the discretion to decide if the matter has 
been adequately and/or proportionately resolved or whether, given the 

Page 136



 

COUNCILLOR CONDUCT COMMITTEE - 5.10.2017 

 

- 161 - 

substance of the original complaint, it should be escalated to the 
Committee for further consideration/resolution”. 
 

3. There were anomalies between the information on the complaint form 
and the procedure for hearing complaints.  On the complaint form it 
stated:   

 
“The Monitoring Officer will normally pass a copy of your complaint to 
the Councillor complained about so that he/she can comment. It is also 
in the interests of fairness and natural justice that a Councillor 
complained about should have the right to know who has made the 
complaint and what it is.  
 
In very exceptional circumstances, the Monitoring Officer may agree to 
withhold your name and address. He/she would only do this if he/she 
has a good reason to believe that to give your name or address to the 
Councillor would be contrary to the public interest or would prejudice 
any investigation.” 
 
In the procedure:   
 
“The Council encourages complainants to provide their name and 
contact details.  If the complainant asks for their identity to be 
protected, the Council will not disclose such details without their 
consent.” 
 

4. Following discussion members agreed with the Monitoring Officer that 
the information on the form could be off putting and could deter people 
making complaints.  It was therefore agreed that the form should be 
changed so that the information on the form matched what was written 
in the procedure.   
 

5. The procedure for hearing complaints was not currently included as 
part of the Council Constitution.  Members felt that this should be 
added.   
 

AGREED that the following changes to the code of conduct procedures be 
recommended to Council for approval:   

 

 To include the additional paragraph set out in 3 above after 
Paragraph 5.1 in the Procedure for Handling Complaints, enabling 
the Monitoring Officer to continue investigating a complaint if they 
felt it was necessary.   

 To include the Procedure for Hearing Complaints in the 
constitution.   

 
The next Council meeting is due to take place on Wednesday 22 November 
2017.   
 
The changes suggested above would also be made to the complaints form.   

Page 137



 

COUNCILLOR CONDUCT COMMITTEE - 5.10.2017 

 

- 162 - 

 
231   
REVIEW OF MEMBER'S EXPENSES  
 
This item was withdrawn and would be considered at the next meeting.   
 
232   
GIFTS AND HOSPITALITY  
 
The Committee received a report from the Monitoring Officer containing the 
additional information on the gifts and hospitality received by members in 
2016/17 as requested at the March 2017 meeting of the Councillor Conduct 
Committee.   
 
NOTED  
 
1. The additional information included more detail on the types of gifts and 

hospitality being recorded.  These were:  lunches, dinners, hospitality 
at sports events, conferences, drinks receptions and the Chelsea 
Flower Show. 
 

2. The whips agreed to write to their group members to remind them that 
they should declare any gifts or hospitality, worth more than £25, 
received or refused.                 

 
AGREED to note the report.                           
 
233   
WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18  
 
The work programme for 2017/18 was received and noted.  No further items 
were added.   
 
234   
MINUTES OF MEETING HELD ON 6 JULY 2017  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 6 July 2017 were agreed as a correct 
record with the following amendment: 
 

 Christine Chamberlain had been present at the meeting.   
 
235   
DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  
 
The dates of future meetings were noted as follows: 
 

 Thursday 7 December 2017 

 Tuesday 6 March 2017 
 
 

Page 138


	Agenda
	4 Appeal Hearing
	Appendix A

	5 Update on Complaints
	6 Review of Member's Expenses
	7 Change to the Procedure for Handling Complaints against Councillors and Co-opted Members
	Member Complaints Procedure Amended November 2013, 22/11/2017 Council
	RevisedHearingsProcedure23January2014, 22/11/2017 Council

	8 Work programme 2017/18
	9 Minutes of Meeting held on 5 October 2017

